
210th meeting 462 29 November 1949 

TWO HUNDRED AND TENTH MEETING 
Held at Lake Success, New York, on Tuesday, 29 November 1949, at 11.15 a.m. 

Chairman: Mr. LACHS (Poland). 

Designation of non-member States to 
which a certified copy of the Revised 
General Act for the Pacific Settlement 
of International Disputes shall he com
municated by the Secretary-General 
for the purpose of accession to this 
Act: report of the Secretary-General 
(A/941) 

1. The CHAIRMAN opened the debate and asked 
members of the Committee to consider whether 
it was opportune to invite non-member States to 
become parties to the Revised General Act, al
though no Member State had yet acceded to it. 

2. Mr. WENDELEN (Belgium) stated that his 
delegation had felt oliged to submit a draft reso
lution (A/C.6/L.108) on the designation of non
member States to be invited to accede to the Re
vised General Act of 1928, since it was Belgium 
that had taken the initiative of submitting a 
proposal for the revision of that Act in the In
terim Committee. As the accession of Belgium 
and Australia to the Act before the next session 
of the General Assembly was assured, he thought 
there could be no objection to the adoption of 
his draft resolution. 
3. He pointed out that, in the operative part of 
the draft resolution, the words "States which 

1 See the summary records of the 208th and 209th meet
ings, passim. 

a~e . . . members of one or more specialized agen
ctes" should read: "States which are or will 
become . . . active members of one or more 
specialized agencies". 

4. He considered that the discussion held on 
the previous day made it unnecessary for him 
to explaiR the meaning of the word "active".1 The 
Belgian delegation had merely adopted the cri
terion ·which appeared in the Cuban and Aus
tralian resolution on the accession of non-mem
ber States to the Convention on the Prevention 
and Punishment of the Crime of Genocide.2 That 
criterion consisted in the expression of a desire 
to advance international co-operatiol\ by means of 
active participation in the activities of specialized 
agencies. The Belgian delegation had been un
able to agree with any of the wider criteria 
proposed on the previous day by various dele
gations, as it considered that the States parties 
to an important legal instrument like the General 
Act had the right to expect that the parties to 
be invited should have a high concept of interna
tional co-operation. The Act provided various 
methods for the pacific settlement of interna
tional disputes and constituted a kind of supple
ment to Chapter VI of the Charter. Another argu
ment in favour of the adoption of a restrictive 
criterion was the fact that the General Assembly 
of the League of Nations had confined itself, in 

• See Official Records of the fourth sessiot~ of the 
General Assetnbl~,o, Annex to the Plenary }vfeetings, docu
ment A/1168. 



29 Novembt>r 1949 463 210th meeting 

its resolution of 26 September 1928,1 to addres
sing invitations to States Members of the !--eague 
of Nations and to certain other States designated 
by name which were now all Members of the 
United Nations. 

5. In conclusion, Mr. Wen del en hoped that the 
draft resolution would be adopted without a 
lengthy debate. 

6. Mr. GoTTLIEB (Czechoslovakia) recalled that, 
during the second part of the third session of 
the General Assembly, the question of the re
vision of the General Act of 1928 had been in
cluded in the agenda of the Interim Committee, 
a special political organ, instead of being referred 
to the Sixth Committee, which would not have 
failed to point out the redundancy of that Act in 
view of the existence of the United Nations Char
ter. A comparison between certain provisions of 
the Act, especially those of chapter IV on arbi
tration, with the provisions of Chapter VI of 
the Charter, clearly showed that, if the provisions 
of the Charter were applied in good faith, the re
entry into force of the General Act would con
stitute a retrograde measure, even from a strictly 
legal point of view. The Czechoslovak delegation 
had pointed out at the third session of the As
sembly that the Act had proved to be ineffective in 
settling the increasing difficulties in European and 
world relations between 1930 and 1940.2 It still 
considered that the re-entry into force of the 
Act would not increase its authority. That state
ment was confirmed by facts, since, six months 
after the adoption of the resolution to restore to 
the Act its original efficacy, not a single Member 
State had acceded to it. That circumstance was 
the more eloquent when it was remembered that . 
certain representatives had asserted that the Re
vised General Act represented one of the most 
important instruments of international political 
co-operation. 

7. Mr. Gottlieb stated that not only had the 
question of the restoration of the efficacy of that 
Act had been submitted to an organ that was 
not competent in the matter, but another un
qualified organ, namely the Sixth Committee, was 
now being asked to designate the non-member 
States which could accede to the Act. That was 
a purely political question with which the Sixth 
Committee was not competent to deal. It was 
not for that Committee to devise new methods 
ior promoting international co-operation in the 
political field by inviting non-member States to 
bring into force an international instrument to 
which Member States were not prepared to ac
cede, knowing as they did that it was ineffective. 

8. The Czechoslovak delegation, therefore, con
sidered that the item should be deleted from the 
agenda of the General Assembly. 

9. Mr. CHAUMONT (France) stated that the 
French delegation's attitude to the question was 
identical with that it had adopted on the previous 
day with regard to the resolution on gencide :3 

it recommended, purely and simply, that the ques
tion be postponed, since no Member State had 
yet acceded to the Revised General Act. Under 

1 League of Nations, Treaty Series No. 2123, article 
43, Ilaragraph 1 (volume XIIIC, page 361). 

• See the Official Records of the third session of the 
General Assembly, Part I, Ad Hoc Political Committee, 
27th meeting. 

article 44 of the Act, the accession of two con
tracting parties was sufficient for its entry into 
force. If non-member States were invited to ac
cede to it, the paradoxical result would be that 
the accession of two non-member States would 
make the Act effective. Such a situation would be 
inadmissible, since it would damage the prestige 
of the United Nations. The French delegation 
\vould make no formal proposal on the postpone
ment of the question, but would support any initia
tive in that direction. 

10. With regard to the Belgian draft resolution, 
he considered that· it was open to the same criti
cism as the draft resolution on genocide. It would 
indeed be an abnormal state of affairs that the 
designation of non-member States for participa
tion in an instrument as important as the General 
Act for the Pacific Settlement of International 
Disputes should be based on their participation 
in technical institutions. 4 That showed even more 
clearly the artificial nature of the criterion adopted 
on the previous day. 

11. Nevertheless, if the Committee wished to 
settle the problem at the present session and to 
decide on the Belgian resolution, he proposed 
the addition of a paragraph to that resolution, 
similar to that proposed on the previous day by 
the Philippine delegation, 5 to read as follows : 

"Remains convinced of the necessity of invit
ing Member States to accede as soon as possible 
to the Revised General Act." 

12. Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom) 
agreed to some extent with the arguments of the 
Czechoslovak representative, although he would 
not go so far as to suggest that the item be deleted 
from the agenda. There was always room in in
ternational relations for an instrument of that 
kind, although the Charter and the Statute of 
the International Court of Justice rendered it Jess 
essential. While it was true that the General Act 
had not been applied between the two wars owing 
to the existence of the League of Nations and the 
Permanent Court of International Justice, it was 
nevertheless an admirable instrument, to which 
States should accede. The United Kingdom dele
gation considered, however, that the question of 
the designation of the non-member States who 
could become parties to the Act should be post
poned until it had been ratified by two or more 
Member States. It was hardly appropriate for 
the United Nations to ask non-member States to 
accede to a convention to which Member States 
themselves had not yet become parties. 

13. With regard to the Belgian draft resolution, 
the Belgian delegation had wished that draft to 
conform in every way with that adopted on the 
previous day with regard to genocide. In that 
case, the United Kingdom representative could 
not see why it was provided that only States which 
were members of one or more specialized agen
cies "on 1 January 1950" should be invited, since 
no such specific date was mentioned in the reso
lution on genocide. There was no reason to as
sume that the States which would become mem
bers of specialized agencies after 1 January 1950 
would not have the requisite qualifications to be 
invited to accede to the Act. 

• See the summary records of the 208th meeting, para
graphs 18, 19 <Lnd 24. 

• Ibid., paragraphs 21 to 23. 
• Ibid., paragraph 15. 



21 Oth meeting 464 29 November 1949 

14. Although he did not object in principle to 
the French proposal, he considered that the in
sertion of a paragraph on Member States in a 
resolution relating to non-member States should 
be avoided. 

15. Mr. FERRER VIEYRA (Argentina) supported 
the draft resolution of the Belgian delegation, 
because the Revised General Act related more 
closely to the interests of non-member States than 
to those of Member States. Under Chapters IV, 
VI and VII of the Charter, Member States 
had a full set of legal provisions providing for 
the pacific settlement of their disputes. Non
member States, on the other hand, had no such 
legal system to apply in case of need. Conseq?ently, 
the Revised General Act was of greater tmpor
tance to them than it was to Member States. It 
was for the United Nations to give them the 
opportunity of acceding to that Act, i? order that 
they might settle their disputes by pacific methods. 

16. He supported the United Kingdom repre
sentative's objection to the mention of the date 
of 1 January 1950 in the ~esolution, sinc_e he co?
sidered that all States whtch played their part m 
international co-operation were qualified to ac
cede to the Act, irrespective of th~ date on which 
they became members of a specialized agency. 

17. Finally, he supported the French proposal 
for the addition of a new paragraph to the draft 
resolution. 

18. Mr. MAURTUA (Peru) pointed out. that the 
failure to ratify the Act might be 3;ttnbuted to 
the fact that certain States had hesitated to take 
the dangerous course of bringing ino force in
struments which it had proved impossible to apply 
in the past. The events that had taken place after 
the Act had been drawn up clearly showed the 
course that should be followed: the existing docu
ment should not be mechanically adhered to, but 
should be revised in the light of the experience 
acquired after the war, which had shown the many 
weaknesses of methods of conciliation. 

19. The present procedure ":as not ~alculated to 
facilitate the development of mternatwnal law or 
methods of codification. The prestige of the United 
Nations demands that a careful study should be 
made of all new factors that might ensure inter
national co-operation and the development, within 
the framework of the Charter, of a whole modern 
system of pacific settlement which would be ac
ceptable to the various nations. The procedure 
that had been followed, however, had led to a 
real crisis in the development of the principles of 
the Charter and had shown that there was a re
grettable absence of initiative. 

20. The document was far from being complete. 
For instance, it did not take into account ~he 
principles laid down in the Pact. of Bogota/ which 
all the American States had signed. That was. a 
grave omission, which must.needs affect the umty 
and universality of international law. 

21. In view of those considerations,_ which dou?t
less explained why States had . failed to rattfy 
the Act the Peruvian delegatiOn would vote 
against the Belgian draft. 

22. Mr. SPIROPOULOS (Greece) did not think it 
an opportune moment to invite non-member States 

1 A name given to the American Treaty on Pacific 
Settlement. 

to become parties to the Revised General Act, 
since Member States had not yet acceded to it. 
The prestige of the United Nations necessitated 
that Member States should begin by adhering to 
a convention themselves before calling upon others 
to do so. The position as regards the Revised 
General Act was different from that in the case 
of the Convention on Genocide which had been 
signed by twenty-eight States and ratified by four, 
whereas the Revised General Act had not yet 
received a single signature and legally did not 
exist. In the circumstances, it was not for non
member States to implement it. 

23. Mr. BARTos (Yugoslavia) stated that his 
Government intended to accede to the Revised 
General Act, which it was carefully studying. 
However, the importance which the restoration 
to the Act of its original efficacy might have from 
the point of view of international co-operation 
was not such as to warrant, for either legal or 
political reasons, that non-member States should 
adhere to it. 

24. In fact, according to article 17 of the Gen
eral Act, "All disputes with regard to which the 
parties are in conflict as to their respective rights 
shall, subject to any reservations which may be 
made under Article 39, be submitted for decision 
to the Permanent Court of International Jus
tice ... " It followed that accession to the Act gave 
a State the right to bring such disputes before 
the Court. It could certainly be said that that pro
vision marked some progress in the sense that 
it provided for a legal settlement of disputes. 
However, Article 35, paragraph 2, of the Statute 
of the International Court of Justice contained 
the provision that "The conditions under which 
the Court shall be open to other States [that is 
to say, States not parties to the Statute] shall, 
subject to the special provisions contained in 
treaties in force, be laid down by the Security 
Council". That Article therefore provided for a 
special procedure so that the Court should be 
open to States which were not parties to the 
Statute. The treaties in question were those in 
force at the time of the ratification of the Charter 
in San Francisco. Thus, by permitting States to 
bring their disputes before the Court without the 
previous sanction of the Security Council, the 
Statute of the Court was being violated, and 
consequently the Charter itself, of which the 
Statute was an integral part. 

25. If the General Assembly had wanted to 
revise the General Act and to adopt it as its 
own, that was no reason for claiming that it had 
thereby wished to ignore Article 35 of the Statute 
of the Court. 

26. Furthermore, it should not be overlooked 
that in accordance with Article 94, paragraph 2, 
of the Charter, the Security Council was the 
guarantor of the judgements of the Court. To 
permit a State to bring its disputes before the 
Court without having previously consulted the 
Security Council would constitute an attack upon 
the prestige of the Council. 

27. The delegation of Yugoslavia was in favour 
of submitting the question at the following ses
sion of the General Assembly, since that would 
enable those non-member States which might be 
invited to accede to the Act to become, in the 
meantime, parties to the Statute of the Court. 



29 November 1949 465 210th meeting 

28. Mr. Bartos asked the representative of ~he 
Secretary-General how the provisions of article 
17 of the General Act could be reconciled with 
those of Article 35 of the Statute. 

29. The CHAIRMAN said that it was not the 
responsibility of the Secr~tary-General but ~f the 
organs of the United Natwns themselves to mter-

. pret the documents ~hich ha~ governed t~e estab
lishment of the Umted Nations or whtch were 
drawn up under its auspices. 

30. Mr. WENDELEN (Belgium), replying to the 
remarks of the United Kingdom representative, 
explained that he had proposed that only those 
States which were participating on 1 January 
1950 in the work of the specialized agencies should 
be invited so that the Secretary-General could 
automatica:lly implement the resolution. How
ever, he did not insist upon that date and was 
willing to suppress it. 

31. With regard to the proposal to submit the 
question at the following session, it should be 
noted that if the General Act was of no great 
practical importance, it nevertheless constituted 
a notable evolution in the sphere of international 
co-operation. That Act had been discussed by 
an organ of the General Ass~mb~y, having. as 
its terms of reference the apphcatwn of Arttcle 
13, paragraph 1 a of the Charter, whic~ .~ro
vided that the General Assembly should tmtlate 
studies and make recommendations for the pur
pose of "promoting international co-operation. in 
the political field and encouraging the progressive 
development of international law and its codifi
cation". The Revised General Act was the first 
concrete result of that study. It had the advantage 
of drawing the attention of Member States and 
non-member States to the necessity of applying, 
in their mutual relations, the procedure of con
ciliation as well as arbitrary and judiciary rules. 

32. Mr. Wendelen observed that when it had 
been drawn up in 1928, the Act had not produced 
any immediate reactions and that it had taken 
three years for nineteen States to accede to it. 
Among these States were the United Kingdom, 
Greece and Peru, which were now opposing the 
immediate accession of non-member States. 

33. By adopting, with regard to the Act, a solu
tion different from that adopted in the case of 
the Convention on Genocide, it might be thought 
that the General Assembly was opposed to the 
principles upon which the Act was based. More
over, there was no reason to adopt a different solu
tion, since both the Convention on Genocide and 
the Revised General Act, which were not en
forced at present, would soon be implemented. 

34. Those considerations operated in favour of 
the adoption of the Belgian draft resolution; in
deed, in not taking such a position the General 
Assembly would seem to be revoking its own 
decision. 

35. In conclusion, Mr. W endelen stated that he 
would not reply to the statements of the Yugo
slav representative at the moment, since they con
cerned the root of the problem. 

36. Mr. SOTo (Chile) said that his delegation 
was convinced of the need to refer the discussion 
of the question to the next session of the General 
Assembly, for the reasons expressed by the rep
resentatives of France, the United Kingdom and 

Yugoslavia. He felt he must emphasize how the 
question under discussion differed from that of 
the invitations to be extended to non-member 
States with a view to their acceding to the Con
vention on Genocide. In the first place, the latter 
was more a technical than a political document, 
as was not the case with the General Act. Sec
ondly, it had received four ratifications whereas 
no Member State had as yet acceded to the Re
vised General Act. It might lower the prestige of 
the Members of the United Nations somewhat 
and of the United Nations itself if non-member 
States were to accede to the General Act before 
any Member State became a party to it. The rep
resentative of Chile formally proposed that the 
question under discussion should be referred to 
the fifth session of the General Assembly. He 
asked for his proposal (A/C.6/L.109) to be put 
to the vote first, as a preliminary question before 
the Belgian draft resolution, concerning which he 
reserved the right to make observations and sub
mit amendments if his own motion for postpone
ment was rejected. 

37. Mr. RENOUF (Australia) supported the Bel
gian draft resolution and was opposed to referring 
the q~estion to the next session, as the delegation 
of Chtle had proposed. The Australian delegation 
did not think that the prestige of United Nations 
required that several Member States should ac
cede to the Revised General Act before non-mem
ber States could be invited to do so· such a solu
tion, moreover, would be contrary 'to the letter 
and spirit of article 44, which made the entry 
into force of the Revised General Act dependent 
on two accessions being deposited whether the 
States in question were Members o; non-members 
of United Nations. It would, of course, be pref
erab~e for M~mber States to set a good example, 
but tf they dtd not do so it was no reason for 
holding up the accession ~f non-member States. 

38. Mr. GARciA AMADOR (Cuba) also declared 
himself in favour of the draft resolution submitted 
by Belgium (A/C.6/L.l08). 

39. Some delegations had maintained that the 
General Act had not proved very effective dur
ing the period in which it was in force and that 
there would, therefore, be no point in reviving it · 
in a revised form. Such an argument, which might 
be called a realistic one, and which had already 
been used against other international acts, hardly 
seemed convincing. The tendency of the United 
Nations had usually been to favour the re-imple
mentation of international conventions adopted 
earlier, which they thought advisable to revive. 

40. In the case in question, from the point of 
view of procedure to be followed for the pacific 
settlement of disputes, one was forced to recognize 
that the Revised General Act filled an undeniable 
need. Article 33 of the Charter of United Nations 
merely listed the pacific methods of settling dis
putes; nowhere in that document were detailed 
rules laid down for the various procedures con
templated, except perhaps where legal settlement 
was concerned, in which case procedure was given 
in detail in the Statute of the International Court 
of Justice. 

41. It should be remembered in that connexion 
that the American States had not confined them
selves to signing the Charter of the Organization 
of American States, although chapter IV of that 
document contained more detailed provisions as 



210th meeting 466 29 November 1949 

to the basic principles for the pacific settlement 
of disputes than did the Charter of the United 
Nations i they had also considered it necessary 
to conclude, under the name of the Pact of Bogota 
an American Treaty on Pacific Settlement which 
laid down in con~idera):>le detail t~e va~ious pro
cedures for settlmg dtsputes whtch mtght arise 
between the American States. The need for a 
similar instrument was even greater in the case of 
the Charter of United Nations, since it dealt with 
the question far more briefly than did the Pact 
of Bogota; the Revised General Act was intended 
to fill predsely that gap. 

42. It was, consequently, important for the Act 
to com~ into force as soon as possible; the Cuban 
delegatton would, therefore, vote for the Belgian 
draft resolution although, in the opinion of the 
Cuban delegation, the draft resolution should be 
made to conform with the resolution adopted 
at the previous meeting on the similar question of 
invitations to be sent to non-member States for 
their accession to the Convention on Genocide. 

43. Mr. AMADO (Brazil) was unable to vote for 
the Belgian draft resolution proposing that non
member States should be invited to accede to the 
Revised General Act, when none of the Member 
States had as yet acceded. 

44. Those States had not abstained without rea
son. The Act, which an attempt was being made 
to resuscitate, had, after raising the greatest hopes 
in the minds of statesmen and in public con
sciousness in 1928, proved valueless during the 
historical events which followed. From that time 
on, one could only speak of it as a thing of the 
past; particularly since the Charter of the United 
Nations and that of the Organization of American 
States had meanwhile seen the light, and a new 
interna~ional law was in the making; and all the 
more smce no one today would think of appealing 
to the clauses of the General Act, as the dramatic 
dis~~ssions :vhich took place almost daily in the 
poltttcal bodtes of the United Nations showed only 
too well. The legal and realistic instincts of the 
members of the Sixth Committee should keep 
!he~ from selecting precisely that moment for 
mvttmg non-member States to accede to the Re
vised General Act. The only logical solution was 
to postpone the question until later. 

45. Mr. KoRETSKY (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that some of those in favour of 
postponement based their view on criticism of 
the Revised General Act itself, while others con
sidered merely that it was not an appropriate 
moment to invite the accession of non-member 
States. 

46. The attitude of the USSR delegation towards 
the proposal to restore its original efficacy to that 
international instrument was quite clear. The 
USSR had always regarded the Interim Com
mittee, which had carried out the revision of the 
Act, as an illegal organ, whose establishment was 
contrary to the provisions of the Charter and 
which was solely designed to detract from the 
role which the Security Council was called upon 
to play in the maintenance of international peace 
and security. It was therefore not surprising that 
the work of that Committee should share its 
illegal character and should conform to the ten
dency which had governed its establishment. The 
Peruvian representative had been able to refer 
to a crisis of the Charter, because blow after· 

blow had been struck against it by the Interim 
Committee and the revival of the General Act 
~ould be described as one of the heaviest blows 
tt had ~et struc~ against the essential organ of 
th~ Umted Nations, the Security Council, ap
pomted by the Charter to safeguard peace. 

47. For that reason, therefore, the USSR dele
g:atio~ ~o?ld give no support to a draft resolu
tion mvttlng non-member States to accede to the 
Act. 

48. Mr. IMRU (Ethiopia) supported the Chilean 
representative's I?roposal of postponement. Al
th~ugh the questton had certain points of simi
lanty with that of inviting non-member States to 
accede to the. Convention on Genocide, the pur
pose of ~ccess10n was very different. The General 
Ac~, w~tch ~ad . never been invoked during the 
penod ~n whtch tt was in force, appeared to have 
a relative usefulness only, and there was no 
urgency in designating non-member States which 
might become parties to it. ' 

49 .. Mr. LEQUERICA (Colombia) outlined the 
mam reasons for which he would support the 
proposal to postpone the question until the fol
lowing session. 

· 50. In the first place, the General Act was old 
and somewhat out of date. In order to become an 
effective instrument for the implementation of 
t~e General Assembly's aims, it required adapta
tt~n to the new international situation. It was ad
mtttedly true that the provisions of Chapters IV 
VI and VII of the Charter and those of th~ 
~tatute .of t~e International Court of Justice were, 
m practtc<;, mad equate to. effect the peaceful settle
metilt ot .mternattonal dtsputes. A special docu
ment ~lVlng a detailed indication of the methods 
by whtch the fundamental principles of the Char
ter should be applied would, therefore, be ex
tremely valuable. It was essential, however, that 
the. Act should conform to the needs of the time, 
wh~ch was faced with political, economic and 
soctal problems that did not exist in 1928. 

51. Certain regional documents, in particular 
the Charter .and ~he Pa~t of Bogota might use
fully be studted wtth a vtew to ascertaining which 
of their provisions might be adapted to the Gen
eral Act to bring it into line with the needs of 
the time. Su~~ a study would require time, which 
was an addtttonal argument in favour of post
ponement. 

52. Finally, Mr. Lequerica agreed with the 
United Kingdom representative that it would 
not be in keeping with the dignity of the United 
Nations to invite non-member States to accede to 
an instrument to which its own Members had so 
far abstained from becoming parties. 

53. If, however, the Committee should take an 
immediate decision on the designation of non
member States which might become parties to the 
Act, the Belgian draft resolution would be really 
acceptable only if, in addition to the deletion of 
the date, 1 January 1950, the last paragraph was 
amended to conform with the action taken at the 
previous meeting on the draft resolution of Aus
tralia and Cuba on the accession of non-member 
States to the Convention on Genocide. 

54. Mr. WENDELEN (Belgium) pointed out that 
the Brazilian representative's arguments would 
have found their appropriate place in the debate 



29 Nove~ 1949 467 210th meeting 

preceding the adoption of General Assembly reso
lution 268 (III). Since the Committee had a 
General Assembly decision before it, it was only 
required to decide a purely procedural question 
and not to express its views on the value or merits 
of the Revised General Act. 

55. Unlike the representative of the USSR, Mr. 
W endelen did not regard the signing of the Act 
as an attack upon the Charter or upon the role 
which the Security Council was called upon to 
play in the maintenance of international peace and 
security. To invite the largest possible number of 
States to accede to the Act could only serve to 
strengthen the authority of the United Nations, 
since the intention was in fact to encourage re
course to pacific methods of settling international 
disputes. 

56. The Belgian delegation considered that the 
difficulties to which the Yugoslav delegation had 
drawn attention could easily be overcome, if it 
was borne in mind that the provisions of the Char
ter and hence of Article 35 of the Statute of the 
International Court of Justice, which formed an 
integral part of the Charter, must take precedence 
over those of the General Act in the event of any 
dispute. 

57. The majority of the Committee appeared to 
be in favour of postponing the question to a 
later session of the General Assembly. Although 
the Belgian delegation had no fundamental ob
jection to the Chilean delegation's proposal, it 
would nevertheless vote against it, considering 
that the arguments in favour of adopting the 
Belgian proposal had not been adequately refuted. 

58. Mr. SPIROPOULOS (Greece) stated that his 
Government approved the General Act as re
vised by the General Assembly and looked forward 
with satisfaction to its entry into force. He won
dered, however, whether it was wise to decide 
there and then that the question should appear on 
the agenda of the next session of the General As
sembly. The Greek delegation was of the opinion 
that it would be wrong to over-burden the agenda 
of the following session of the Assembly without 
serious reason, because there was no means of 
foreseeing what the situation would be in a year's 
time. His delegation therefore proposed that con
sideration of the question should be deferred sine 
die. He would like to point out that the adoption 
of his proposal would in no way exclude the pos
sibility of discussing the question at the fifth ses
sion of the General Assembly, for the Secretary
General would always be entitled to include the 
matter in ·the agenda for that session should it 
prove that a considerable number of States had 
in the meanwhile adhered to the Revised General 
Act. 

59:· It appeared that the question had been suffi
ciently discussed; and he therefore proposed the 
closure of the discussion. 

The motion to close the discussion proposed by 
the representative of Greece was adopted by 36 
votes to none, with 8 abstentions. 

60. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote, as a pre
liminary matter, the principle of referring to a 
subsequent session of the General Assembly the 
question of the nomination of non-member States 
to which the Secretary-General should communi
cate the Revised General Act. 

61. He pointed out that if the Committee de
cided in favour of such reference, it would then 
have to choose between the Chilean motion, which 
advocated reference to the succeeding session of 
the General Assembly, and the Greek motion, 
which recommended that the question be deferred 
sine die. 

It was decided by 27 votes to 7, with 9 absten
tions, to defer consideration. 

62. Mr. FERRER VIEYRA (Argentina) explained 
that he had voted against the principle of adjourn
ment, because he considered that reference of 
the matter to another session of the General As
sembly would in no way improve the contents of 
th~ . ~evised General Act, which was open to the 
cnt!Clsms made by several members of the Com
mittee, and particularly by the representative of 
Brazil. The same objections would be valid what
~ver session of the Assembly had the question on 
tts agenda. 

63. The Argentine delegation was of the opinion 
t~at better results would be obtained if the ques
tiOn wa~ referred to a juridical body like the 
International Law Commission with instructions 
to draw up a new General Act more in acordance 
with modern trends so far as concerned the peace
ful settlement of international disputes. 

64. Mr. PEREZ PERozo (Venezuela) said he 
would like to state that his delegation's vote to 
defer cons~~eration of the question did not imply 
any opposthon to the methods of settlement pro
vided for in the Revised General Act. It was 
solely for reasons of expediency that the Vene
zuelan delegation preferred that the General As
sembly should wait until a sufficient number of 
Member States had adhered to the Act before 
inviting non-member States to do so. 

65 . . Mr. BARTOS (Yugdslavia) explained that in 
votmg .to defer consideration of the ·question, his 
delegatiOn had not registered any objection either 
to the contents of the General Act or to the prin
ciple of an application of its provisions which 
would be as universal as possible. 

66. Recalling the legal difficulty to which he 
had referred in his previous speech, he expressed 
the hope that the Secretary-General would find 
it possible to prepare for the next session of the 
General Assembly a memorandum on the pro
cedure to be adopted for bringing the provisions 
of article 17 of the General Act into accordance 
with those of Article 35 of the Statute of the In
ternational Court of Justice. 

67. Mr. TRUJILLO (Ecuador) said he had voted 
for the principle of deferring consideration of the 
question because it had clearly appeared from the 
discussion that public opinion in every country in 
the world had been sharply disappointed with the 
results of the General Act, on which it had based 
such hopes. It was not sufficient, however, to refer 
the matter to the next session of the General As
sembly or to a later session, for the Revised Gen
eral Act would always have the same defects and 
omissions and would always be ineffective. In the 
opinion of the Ecuadorean delegation, the Inter
national Law Commission or some other compe
tent b9dy should be asked to draw up a text which 
would not have the same faults . 

68. Mr. GARciA AMADOR (Cuba) had voted 
against the principle of deferring consideration 



2llth meeting 468 29 November 1949 

because he was a supporter of the Belgian draft 
resolution. While it was true that the General Act 
was not the perfect solution of the problem of the 
peaceful settlement of international disputes, it 
had nevertheless been approved by the General 
Assembly and all efforts should be made therefore 
to obtain as many accessions as possible. 

69. Mr. MATTAR (Lebanon) said he had voted 
for deferment of consideration of the question for 

the reasons explained by the representatives of 
France, the United Kingdom and Yugoslavia. 

70. He added that his attitude had also been 
motivated by the fact that it seemed difficult to 
him to admit that non-member States of the Or
ganization could be invited to adhere to the re
vised General Act before the Member States had 
done so themselves. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 




